ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
SENATE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 28, 2013
9:01 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Fred Dyson, Chair

Senator Cathy G essel, Vice Chair
Senat or John Coghi | |

Senator Bill W el echowski

VEMBERS ABSENT
Senator Bert Stednman
COWMM TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BILL NO. 73

"An Act authorizing nunicipalities to exenpt from tax, by
ordi nance approved by the voters in the nunicipality, the real
property that is the primary residence of a resident who is the
wi dow or w dower of a person who was killed while in the
mlitary service of the United States; and providing for an
effective date."

- HEARD & HELD

HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTI ON NO. 4
Proclaimng May 15 to be Hnong- Areri can Veterans Menorial Day.

- MOVED HCR 4 QUT OF COW TTEE
SENATE BI LL NO. 45
"An Act setting special registration fees for alternative fuel
vehi cles; and providing for an effective date."
- MOVED SB 45 QUT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS COWM TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 73

SHORT TI TLE: PROPERTY TAX EXEMPTI ON' M LI TARY W DOW ER)
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) MEYER

03/ 11/ 13 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 11/ 13 (S) CRA, STA

SENATE STA COW TTEE -1- March 28, 2013



03/19/13 (S) CRA AT 3:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

03/19/13 (S -- Meeting Postponed to 3/26/13 --
03/ 26/ 13 (S) CRA AT 3:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

03/ 26/ 13 (S) Moved CSSB 73(CRA) CQut of Committee
03/ 26/ 13 (S) M NUTE ( CRA)

03/ 27/ 13 (S CRA RPT CS 4DP NEW Tl TLE

03/ 27/ 13 (S) DP: M CCl CHE, EGAN, HOFFMAN, G ESSEL
03/ 28/ 13 (S) STA AT 9: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

BILL: HCR 4

SHORT TI TLE: HMONG AMERI CAN VETERANS DAY
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) LEDOUX

02/ 15/ 13 (H) READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

02/ 15/ 13 (H) M.V

03/12/13 (H M.V AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120

03/ 12/ 13 (H) Moved Qut of Conmttee

03/12/ 13 (H) M NUTE (M.V)

03/ 13/ 13 (H) M.V RPT 6DP 1AM

03/ 13/ 13 (H DP: SADDLER, HUGHES, GRUENBERG,
H GG NS, FOSTER, LEDOUX

03/ 13/ 13 (H) AM REI NBOLD

03/ 18/ 13 (H) TRANSM TTED TO (S)

03/ 18/ 13 (H) VERS|I ON:  HCR 4

03/ 19/ 13 (S READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS

03/19/ 13 (S) STA

03/ 28/ 13 (S) STA AT 9: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

BILL: SB 45

SHORT TI TLE: FEE/ TAX EXEMPTI ON FOR CERTAI N VEHI CLES
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) MOGUI RE

02/ 06/ 13 (S) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 06/ 13 (S) STA, FIN

02/ 28/ 13 (S) STA AT 9:00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
02/ 28/ 13 (S) Heard & Hel d

02/ 28/ 13 (S) M NUTE ( STA)

03/ 28/ 13 (S) STA AT 9:00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

EDRA MORLEDCE, St af f

Senat or Kevi n Meyer

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Introduced SB 73 on behal f of the sponsor.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 2- March 28, 2013



SENATOR KEVI N MEYER

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Sponsor of SB 73.

RACHEL W TTY, Assistant Attorney General

Labor and State Affairs Section

Department of Law

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions related to SB 73.

KATH E WASSERMAN, Executive Director

Al aska Muni ci pal League

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 73.

SUSAN TOW representing herself

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in favor of including sanme sex
donestic partners in SB 73.

PAT CARLSON, Director of Assessing

Fai rbanks North Star Borough

Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified about problens with SB 73.

STEVE VAN SANT, State Assessor

D vision of Community and Regional Affairs

Depart ment of Comrerce, Conmunity and Economi c Devel opnent
Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions related to SB 73.

JEFFREY M TTMAN, Executive D rector

Al aska G vil Liberties Union

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 73.

SCOIT RUBY, Director

D vision of Community and Regional Affairs

Departnment of Commerce, Community, and Econom c Devel opnent
Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 73.

REPRESENTATI VE GABRI ELLE LEDOUX

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Sponsor of HCR 4.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 3- March 28, 2013



DI RK MOFFAT, Staff

Representative Gabriell e LeDoux

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HCR 4.

CHARLI E MOUA, President

Special CGuerilla Unit - Veterans and Famly of USA - California
Sacramento, California

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in favor of HCR 4.

ARTHUR YANG, Advi sor

Special CGuerrilla Unit Veterans and Famly of USA - Al aska
Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in favor of HCR 4.

PASERT LEE, President

Hmong Al aska Conmunity

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in favor of HCR 4.

CGENEVI EVE WOJTUSI K, St af f

Senator Lesil MQiire

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented information related to SB 45.

CURTI S THAYER, Deputy Comm ssi oner

O fice of the Conm ssioner

Departnent of Adm nistration

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expl ained the fiscal note for SB 45.

HOMRD LENOX, Regional Director

Governnent Affairs-Wstern Region

General Mdtors

Sacranmento, California

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 45.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

9:01:19 AM
CHAIR FRED DYSON called the Senate State Affairs Standing
Committee neeting to order at 9:01 a.m Present at the call to
order were Senators Welechowski, Coghill, and G essel, and
Chai r Dyson.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -4- March 28, 2013



SB 73- PROPERTY TAX EXEMPTI ON'M LI TARY W DOV ER)

9:02: 06 AM
CHAI R DYSON announced that the first order of business would be
SB 73.

EDRA MORLEDGE, Staff, Senator Kevin Myer, sponsor of SB 73,
introduced the bill on behalf of the sponsor. She explained that
SB 73 provides a property tax exenption for w dows and w dowers
of mlitary service nenbers. The bill cane about because of a
constituent of Senator Myers, Theresa Dayton, who |ost her
husband who was in the mlitary. She referred to a letter of
support for M. Dayton in nenbers' packets. She related that in
2012, Ms. Dayton worked hard with the Minicipality of Anchorage
to pass Proposition 7, which would exenpt the first $150, 000 of
property taxes for surviving mlitary spouses; however, the
proposition cannot take effect until the I|egislature anends AS
29. 45.030(e) .

M5. MORLEDCE related that SB 73 anends the aforenentioned
statute so that Proposition 7 can take effect and so any other
muni ci pality can do the same thing.

CHAI R DYSON noted the arrival of Senator Meyer.

M5. MORLEDGE continued to explain that the bill is intended to
support the famlies of service nenbers who die while serving
their country and to encourage the famlies to remain in Al aska.
It is not an unfunded nandate, but allows nunicipalities the
statutory |anguage needed to provide this exenption, should they
wish to. She noted there is a zero fiscal note from the
Depart ment of Commrerce, Conmunity and Econom ¢ Devel opnent.

M5. MORLEDGE offered to explain the changes between the original
bill and the CS, version N

9:04: 52 AM
SENATOR G ESSEL noved to adopt CS for SB 73, version N, as the
wor ki ng docunent. There being no objection, it was so ordered.

M5. MORLEDGE described the changes from the original version of
the bill, which was nodel ed on previous |egislation. The CS does
not limt the exenption to those 60 years and older as the
original bill did. The CS was also tightened up regardi ng what
it nmeans to be killed in the mlitary. It now states that the
provision applies to a nenber of the arnmed forces of the United

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 5- March 28, 2013



States who died because of illness or injury suffered while
serving on active duty or conplications relating to the
treatment of the illness or injury suffered while on active
duty. The Ilanguage mnmirrors another statute and is clearer,
according to the Departnent of Law. Also, the definitions of
wi dow and wi dower were clarified.

9:07:09 AM
At ease

9:07: 56 AM

SENATOR KEVIN MEYER, sponsor of SB 73, related that the
| egislation would apply to only five people. He comented that
he didn't know why people join the mlitary because of the
i nadequate |ife insurance offered. He explained that Anchorage
put this issue on the ballot in 2012 and it passed; however, it
cannot be inplenented until a statute change is nade.

9:09: 34 AM
CHAIR DYSON asked if there was a |egal opinion from Anchorage
regarding the need to nodify the state statute.

M5. MORLEDGE referred to an item in the packet - the Anchorage
ordi nance, which specifies the statute mnust be changed. She
noted that there is a simlar statute that allows a nunicipality
to exenpt property tax for w dows and w dowers, but it states
that the person nust be serving on active duty while eligible
for hostile fire or inmm nent danger pay. Senate Bill 73 does not
use that |anguage and requires a vote of the people before the
exenption is allowed, which the other statute does not.

9:11: 18 AM
SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked for a definition of active duty
servi ce.

M5. MORLEDGE responded that I|egislative research cane up wth
many definitions. The sponsor wshed the definition to be
broader than what was in current statute. For exanple, SB 73
woul d apply to the famly of a person who contracted nmalaria and
di ed, but was not necessarily in conbat.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if all branches are covered,
i ncluding the National Guard and the Coast Cuard.

M5. MORLEDGE said yes.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 6- March 28, 2013



SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if the | anguage "who dies because of
illness or injury” refers 100 percent to death caused by their
mlitary service.

M5. MORLEDGE clarified that the intent is if the person died as
a result of their active duty experience.

9:14: 23 AM

CHAI R DYSON assuned that the legislature is making it possible
for the municipalities to enact their own propositions and the
muni ci palities can set the criteria.

SENATOR MEYER agreed. He said he did not want the state to
hi nder muni ci palities' flexibility to apply their own
gui del i nes.

SENATOR G ESSEL noted she worked on another bill that used the
termse "active duty" and "overseas," which also apply to "in
Al aska." She clarified that illness or injury experienced while
on active duty applies to those serving at honme. She concl uded
the bill is very broad.

M5. MORLEDGE said that is the intent of the bill. She gave an
exanpl e of a constituent whose husband was killed in Al aska.

9:16: 04 AM

RACHEL W TTY, Assistant Attorney GCeneral, Labor and State
Affairs Section, Departnent of Law, answered questions related
to SB 73. She commented that she did not have an answer about
whet her the cause of death had to be a substantial factor or a
contributing factor.

CHAI R DYSON asked if the statute change is needed.
M5. WTTY said, based on Anchorage's ordinance, it is needed.

CHAI R DYSON asked if current statute allows a rmunicipality to
provide relief for certain people on property taxes.

M5. WTTY replied that if it is not one of the categories
i ncluded under the current statute, which is linmted to persons
65 and ol der, or a disabled veteran, or a wi dow or w dower, aged
60 or nore, of a person 65 or older, it is needed. The
muni ci palities were not able to give the exception to mlitary
wi dows or w dowers of soneone who was killed who was not 65 or
ol der or a disabled veteran.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -7- March 28, 2013



9:18: 27 AM

CHAI R DYSON | ooked at AS 29.45.050 and read subsection (s), "a
muni ci pality may by ordinance partially or wholly exenpt from
taxation, a real property owned and occupied as a permanent
pl ace of abode by resident who is the widow or wdower of a
menber of the arned services injured on active duty." He opined
that nunicipalities could have provided for the exenption under
those tighter conditions in current code. He asked if that was
correct.

M5. WTTY said she believed that to be correct. She suggested
that sonmeone else from the Departnent of Law could clarify that
i ssue.

CHAIR DYSON said the bill broadens the scope and is probably
necessary to acconplish the sponsor's intent.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked if the bill would only affect five
peopl e i n Anchor age.

M5. WTTY deferred to Marty MGCee, the Anchorage assessor, to

answer. She understood that the bill would have a relatively
m nor effect.

SENATOR MEYER noted that the nunber was attained by the
assessor.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if that was in only Anchorage.

SENATOR MEYER said that was correct.

9:21:41 AM
KATH E WASSERMAN, Executive Director, Alaska Minicipal League,
testified on SB 73. She said she appreciates that the bill is

optional. She also wondered if this provision was already in
statute and she nmaintained that AS 29.45.050(s) was broader than
SB 73 in that it allows a nunicipality to partially or wholly
exenpt soneone from taxation. She thought nobst mnunicipalities
did not have "wi ggle room' to exenpt anyone from property taxes.

SENATOR COGHI LL asked if M. Wasserman heard the debate
regardi ng Proposition 7 in Anchorage.

M. WASSERMAN sai d no.

SENATOR W ELECHOAMSKI  recalled that a simlar bill passed
recently.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 8- March 28, 2013



M5. WASSERMAN said Fairbanks North Star Borough passed an
ordi nance to broaden exenptions several years ago.

SENATOR COGHI LL said AS 29.45. 050 was passed in 2008.

9:24:37 AM
SUSAN TOW representing herself, testified in favor of including
sane sex donestic partners in the bill. She related that she

served 22 years of honorable service in the United States Air
Force. She provided her mlitary history and her personal
hi story. She noted the potential value of the benefits provided
by this legislation for her and her famly. She detailed a
nunber one fear that famlies such as hers will not be taken
care of. She concluded that gay and lesbian mlitary famlies
nmust be included in the provisions of SB 73.

CHAI R DYSON t hanked Ms. Tow for her service.

9:27.:51 AM

PAT CARLSON, Director of Assessing, Fairbanks North Star
Borough, testified about problens with SB 73. He noted that he
is also a Vietnam veteran with the Coast CGuard. He described
significant changes between the optional exenptions adopted by
t he Fairbanks North Star Borough and the mandatory provisions of
SB 73. He said version N, changes the inpact from a relatively
small one to a nuch larger one by increasing the nunber who
could benefit. There is no age I|imt and no way for
muni cipalities to correct or nodify the terns. He stated that
Fai rbanks has 716 disabled vets under the nmandatory exenption
program which equals about $100 mllion in assessed value or
about $1.5 mllion in revenue exenpted. There is the potential
for the new version of the bill to greatly increase that anount.
He maintained that SB 73 is not a local option and cannot be
nodi fied without further l|egislative action. He called it an
unfunded mandate. He noted that he supports the concept, but not
the increase in local liability.

9:31: 20 AM

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI questioned M. Carlson's statenent that the
statute is mandatory and has no age limt. He stated that the
wi dow or wi dower has to be 60 years or older. He read on page 1,
lines 10-14, "A nmunicipality my by ordinance approved by the
voters grant the exenption under this subsection to the w dow or
wi dower under 60 years of age." He asked why M. Carlson thought
the bill was mandatory.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -9- March 28, 2013



MR. CARLSON said he was reading from the original bill. He
mai ntained that the bill is mandatory because it nodifies AS
29.45.030(e), which is nmandatory | anguage. He said AS
29.45.050(s) is a local option.

SENATOR COGHI LL suggested "adding an 'a' and a 'b' under
subsection (e)." He agreed that there is no age limt on "or to
a resident." He agreed with M. Carlson's second point and
suggested line 13 could be nodified to clarify whether there is
an age limt.

CHAI R DYSON agreed that was a "good catch.”

9:33:40 AM

STEVE VAN SANT, State Assessor, Dvision of Conmunity and
Regi onal Affairs, Departnent of Commerce, Community and Econom c
Devel opment, answered questions related to SB 73. He agreed that
M. Carlson is correct. He understood the intent of the CSis to
remove the 60-years-of-age limtation because veterans are much
younger today. He noted a difference between the two statutes

AS 29.45.030(e) and AS 29.45.050(s). The law under the latter
(s) is nore pointed and directly ainmed at those who have died in
the line of duty, while (e) is broader. He estimated that
previous to version N, SB 73 would have had a statew de effect
on taxes in |less than a dozen cases; now he is not sure.

SENATOR W ELECHOWEKI requested further clarification

MR. VAN SANT replied, as version N now reads, it could apply to
nor e peopl e.

CHAI R DYSON asked for an approximation of how many it could
affect.

MR. VAN SANT thought it could apply to |ess than 50 people, but
he said it is difficult to guess.

9:36: 51 AM
SENATOR COGHI LL asked what would happen if soneone died due to
illness while serving on active duty.

MR. VAN SANT said the original bill could have covered anyone
who had a ski accident and died. He noted he has not seen
version Nto see if the | anguage was tightened up.

CHAIR DYSON asked who decides who qualifies for the tax
exenpti on.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 10- March 28, 2013



MR. VAN SANT said it is up to the local assessor's office. The
Al aska Association of Assessing Ofice would draft a standard so
all municipalities handle the issue the sane way, as was done
wi th ot her exenption prograns.

CHAI R DYSON asked if M. Van Sant dealt with the issue while he
was i n Anchorage.

MR. VAN SANT said yes, regarding senior citizen exenptions.

9:39:16 AM

CHAI R DYSON comrented that figuring out sonmeone's age is easier
than determning if their death was caused directly or
indirectly by conbat exposure.

SENATOR W ELECHOANSKI noted a zero fiscal note. He suggested if
50 people qualify for the exenption it would increase the anount
of property tax the state would have to pay.

MR. VAN SANT replied that it would still be a zero fiscal note
from the state's perspective because it is not funding the
program

SENATOR W ELECHOWNSKI asked if the state pays property taxes to
| ocal rmunicipalities.

MR. VAN SANT said no.

9:40: 36 AM

JEFFREY M TTMAN, Executive Director, Alaska Cvil Liberties
Union (ACLU) of Alaska, testified on SB 73. He noted he has
provided witten testinony. He suggested a mnor anmendnent to
protect sanme sex mlitary famlies who qualify for this
exenpti on. He said every court has decided that it s
unconstitutional to exclude those famlies. He asked that the
committee nake the amendnent.

9:42: 33 AM
SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked for clarification.

MR MTTMAN reiterated that the w dow or w dower of sane sex
couples who were married in other states would be excluded from
the tax exenption, so a change in | anguage woul d be required.

CHAI R DYSON said the information is found on line 12, page 2.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -11- March 28, 2013



SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if a sane sex marriage recognized in
another state is recognized in Alaska, should the couple nove
here. He inquired if the language, as it is witten, would cover
t hat .

MR. M TTMAN expl ai ned that the Alaska Constitution would prevent
recognition of same sex couples, so therefore the bill, as
currently witten, would not apply to those couples. He gave an
exanple of a couple who were married at West Point and noved to
Al aska.

9:44: 37 AM

SCOTT RUBY, Director, Division of Conmunity and Regiona
Affairs, Department of  Commerce, Communi ty, and Econom c
Devel opnent, testified on SB 73. He echoed M. Van Sant's
coment s.

SENATOR W ELECHOWNSKI requested clarification of "active duty
service" and whether it applies to National Guard nenbers, and
"injury or illness" definitions.

CHAI R DYSON added that Senator Coghill's question on page 1,
line 13, "or a resident" al so needs clarification.

9:46: 30 AM
At ease

9:47. 34 AM

CHAIR DYSON said the comrittee would like to have their
guestions answered by the Attorney General's Ofice and get a
legal opinion in witing. He asked Ms. Mrledge if she could do
that by the next neeting.

M5. MORLEDGE said yes.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI read the | anguage as "a nenber of the arned

forces of the United States who dies because of illness or
injuries suffered while serving on active duty service." He
asked if that includes suicide. He also requested nore

i nformati on about proportionality.

SENATOR COGHI LL sai d t hat under [ AS 29. 45. 050] t he
muni ci palities nmust i ncl ude requi renents to det ernm ne
eligibility. He suggested that |anguage m ght be added.

CHAI R DYSON asked for clarification on "residency” and "age.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -12- March 28, 2013



M5. MORLEDGE noted that one of the changes nmade in the CS was to
remove the 60-year age limt. The sponsor wanted the provision
to apply to any w dow or w dower.

CHAIR DYSON asked why that was not included in the first
section.

M5. MORLEDGE was not clear which section Chair Dyson was
referring to.

CHAIR DYSON held SB 73 in comm ttee.

HCR 4- HVONG- AVERI CAN VETERANS DAY

9:50:41 AM
CHAI R DYSON announced that the next order of business would be
HCR 4.

REPRESENTATI VE GABRI ELLE LEDOUX, sponsor of HCR 4, introduced
the bill. She read fromthe foll owm ng sponsor statenent:

House Concurrent Resolution 4 would recogni ze and
honor Hnong veterans who fought in support of United
States mlitary operations in the Kingdom of Laos
bet ween February 28, 1961, and May 15, 1975, by
proclaimng May 15 to be Hmhong- Aneri can Vet erans
Menori al Day.

Hmong were call ed “danmed good fighters” by the Cl A
They fought bravely in what was called the U S.
“Secret War” in Laos against sonme of the toughest
North Vi et nanese and Lao troops for 13 years and
suffered casualty rates five tinmes higher than the
rate experienced by U S. Sol diers.

The nobst conservative estimated nunbers during the
U.S. involvenent in the Vietnam War are 35,000 -

40, 000 brave young Hmong killed in conbat; 50,000 -

58, 000 wounded; and 3,000 missing in action. After the
U S. withdrawal from Southeast Asia, thousands nore
Hmong were killed during genocide carried out by
communi st forces during the Hong attenpt to flee to
nei ghbori ng Thai | and.

The nost recent nunbers set the U S. Hrong popul ation

bet ween 200, 000 - 300,000, with the Al aska popul ation
at al nost 4,700 and rising. Many Hnong have i nm grated

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 13- March 28, 2013



here followi ng the Vietnamconflict after persecution
for supporting the U S

The “Secret War” is no longer a secret and recognition
of these brave fighting nmen is Iong overdue. That is
why | urge the passage of HCR 4 and by doi ng so
commenorating the service of these forgotten warriors.

DI RK MOFFAT, Staff, Representative Gabrielle LeDoux, testified
on HCR 4. He noted that nenbers of the Hrong community were
avai |l abl e to answer questi ons.

9:54:13 AM

CHARLI E MOUA, President, Special CGuerilla Unit (SGJ) - Veterans
and Famly of USA - California, testified in favor of HCR 4. He
said there were chapters of S@J in California, M nnesota,
W sconsin, Mchigan, Onhio, and Kentucky. He related that he was
a former United States liaison official in Laos. He shared his
mlitary history and work with the United States Special Forces.
He gave his reasons for wanting to serve with the United States
to fight against the Comunists in Laos. He described the
duration of the SGJ forces wunder five presidents and the
organi zation of the S®J forces in Laos during difficult and
dangerous ti nes.

CHAI R DYSON voi ced appreciation for the historic and brave role
the Hmong people played in Southeast Asia. He said that HCR 4
would set aside a time to recognize the Hhong veterans and to
informthe public about their heroic role and suffering.

10: 02: 47 AM
At ease

10: 03: 05 AM
ARTHUR YANG, Advisor, Special CGuerrilla Unit Veterans and Famly
of USA - Al aska, testified in support of HCR 4.

PASERT LEE, President, Hnmong Al aska Community, testified in
favor of HCR 4. He thanked the bill sponsor for introducing the
bill. He noted that seven people gathered to testify in support
of HCR 4.

CHAI R DYSON said many Hnong are noving into Eagle River area. He
said he would like to neet with those testifying sonme tine. He
said he has always felt that when the U S. pulled out of Vietnam
in the 1970's, the Hnmong were abandoned and betrayed in sone
way. He wondered, if that is true, how the Hnhong people got

SENATE STA COW TTEE -14- March 28, 2013



beyond the anger and resentnment and decided to nove to the
country that betrayed them

MR. YANG explained that they had to | eave Laos so they would not
be execut ed.

CHAI R DYSON thanked M. Yang for choosing the US. He said he
wi shed to neet with the Hrong comunity.

10: 06: 16 AM

SENATOR G ESSEL noved to report HCR 4, |abeled 28-LS0504\U, from
conmittee wth individual recommendations and attached zero
fiscal note. There being no objection, HCR 4 was reported from
the Senate State Affairs Standing Commttee.

10: 06: 31 AM
At ease

SB 45- FEE/ TAX EXEMPTI ON FOR CERTAI N VEHI CLES

10: 07: 40 AM
CHAI R DYSON announced that the final order of business would be
SB 45.

GENEVI EVE WOJTUSI K, Staff, Senator Lesil MQire, presented
information related to SB 45. She offered to answer questions.
She referred to an article by GM Conmuni cati ons dealing with how
alternative fuel cars are affected by cold weather, in response
to a previous question by Senator G essel.

CHAI R DYSON requested answers to several questions that cane up
during the previous hearing of the bill.

M5. WQJTUSIK answered the question about the fiscal note,
stating that last year's fiscal note was nmuch |ower at $20, 000
conpared to this year's fiscal note which is over $100,000. The
cormmittee noted there were not that many alternative fuel
vehicles in Alaska. The sponsor is hoping that this bill wll
notivate nore people to buy alternative fuel vehicles. She said
the commttee has drafted a new fiscal note reflecting |ast
year's fiscal note.

10: 08: 56 AM

CURTI' S THAYER, Deputy Conm ssioner, Ofice of the Conmm ssioner
Department of Adm nistration, explained the fiscal note for SB
45. The Departnent of Administration submtted a fiscal note on
February 22, 2013, stating the costs to the departnent would be

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 15- March 28, 2013



about $110,000 in the first year and $25,000 in successive
years. He stated that the departnent stands by that fiscal note
and was unaware of the new fiscal note.

CHAI R DYSON noted a site where the Vehicle ldentification Nunber
(VMIN) information is found for free. He asked if this bill wll
require the departnent to check every VIN nunber in the state.

MR. THAYER explained that the departnent would [ook at VIN
nunbers to see who qualifies for the special registration fee
There are prograns that will run the VIN nunber to determne the
type of vehicle. The $110,000 was to buy the program and then
$25,000 was for the subscription. He noted that there are
mul ti pl e vendors and he hoped the proposed fiscal note is on the
high side. He said it is getting harder to track VIN nunbers.

CHAIR DYSON commented that the people who want this exenption
will identify their specific vehicle, and all that needs to be
done is to interact with the nmanufactures. He asked if there is
an identifier in the WVIN nunber that tells if it 1is an
alternative fuel vehicle.

MR. THAYER said there is, and a program can deci pher that VIN
nunber and process it imrediately.

10: 12: 07 AM

SENATOR W ELECHOWMSKI enphasi zed that the fiscal note two years
ago was $20,000 with no cost thereafter; the fiscal note this
year is for $110,000 with a cost of $25,000 every year
thereafter. He said he supports the bill, but thinks the fisca
note is extremely high and unjustifi ed.

CHAIR DYSON said he shares that opinion. He noted M. Thayer
said it was the high limt.

10: 13: 04 AM

At ease

10: 13: 28 AM

SENATOR G ESSEL asked for clarification about the $20 biennial
registration fee on line 6, and on line 9, the $10 annual

regi stration fee. She suggested it was referring to one fee.
M5. WOJTUSKI agreed that they were the sane fee.

10: 14: 30 AM

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 16- March 28, 2013



HOMRD LENOX, Regional Director, Governnment Affairs-Wstern
Regi on, General Mdtors, testified in support of SB 45. He listed
the types of qualified alternative fuel vehicles the fee applies
to: CNG LNG electric and plug-in hybrid electric vehicles. He
noted the national security issue due to dependence on foreign
oil. He said that vehicle mnmanufacturers are responding by
produci ng alternative fuel vehicles. Due to their cost there is
a need to encourage consunmers to take action in the market
pl ace. He stressed the inportance incentives play in pronoting
the use of alternative fuel vehicles. He said SB 45 provides
such an incentive. An inportant aspect of the bill is that it
does not pick winners or |osers froma technol ogy perspecti ve.

He noted that Alaska will join 30 states that have sone form of
incentive for alternative fuel vehicles. He thanked Senator
McGuire and the comm ttee.

CHAI R DYSON pointed out that he and Senator GG essel have been
working on alternative fuel issues. He asked M. Lenox to
forward a list of incentives other jurisdictions have offered

and he requested an anal ysis of the hydrogen fuel vehicle.

10: 18: 13 AM
CHAI R DYSON asked what the conmmttee w shes to do about the
fiscal notes.

SENATOR G ESSEL noted she has nore questions. She asked M.
Thayer why the fiscal note does not address the |ost revenues
fromthe reduced registration fees.

MR THAYER said the fiscal note is indetermnate until the
nunber of vehicles is known.

SENATOR G ESSEL noted on page 2 of the fiscal note it says
"there are currently 2,301 strictly hybrid vehicles registered.™
She concluded that there is sonme quantity that could be
construed for a fiscal note. She asked what the typica
registration fee is.

MR. THAYER said, depending on the vehicle, the vehicle tax is
$50 to $60, plus the Mdtor Vehicle Registration Tax (MRT), the
comunity tax which can vary from $18 to $100. There is a |oss
of revenue to DW, as well as to the comunities.

SENATOR G ESSEL clarified that local comunities would |ose
revenue.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -17- March 28, 2013



MR. THAYER commented that it depends on the registration. That
is why DW was trying to quantify the <cost as far as
adm nistering the program The departnent does not have a
position on the bill and would probably |ean toward supporting
the bill.

SENATOR G ESSEL noted that these are expensive cars. She asked
what the average cost is.

M5. WOJTUSKI did not know.

CHAI R DYSON replied that the cheapest ones are in the $20,000 to
$30,000 range and the npbst expensive are around $750,000. He
guessed that nost fall into the $25,000 to $55, 000 range.

10: 21: 37 AM
SENATOR d ESSEL observed that the reduction in registration fees
woul d benefit affluent fol ks. She voiced concern about that.

CHAIR DYSON said it is a policy call whether this mnor change
will affect anyone's buying habits. The bill does send a signal
that the state wants to encourage alternative fuels.

CHAI R DYSON asked if the fiscal note should be anended.

SENATOR W ELECHOWMSKI said he conpared |last year's fiscal note to
this year's. He agreed it was a policy call and said he supports
the bill, but would |ike to see a reduced fiscal note.

SENATOR d ESSEL suggested noving the bill on to the Senate
Fi nance Comm ttee.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI said he would not object to nobving the
bill.

CHAI R DYSON suggested sending a cover letter along with the bill
to include the conmttee's suggestions. He encouraged DW to
research VIN services that are available for no cost.

10: 24: 37 AM

SENATOR G ESSEL noved to report SB 45, version 28-LS0411\A, from
commttee wth individual recomendations and attached DOA
fiscal notes. There being no objection, SB 45 was reported from
the Senate State Affairs Standing Conmttee.

10: 25:13 AM

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 18- March 28, 2013



There being no further business to cone before the commttee,
Chair Dyson adjourned the Senate State Affairs Standing
Commttee at 10:24 a.m

SENATE STA COW TTEE -19- March 28, 2013



